EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA
July 18, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

Carson Valley Swim Center
1600 Hwy 88, Minden, Nevada

Pursuant to Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised Sfatutes, the East Fork Swimming Pool District hereby notifies
all interested parties that the Board of Trustees will conduct business of the district as noted below.

e e e s sk s sbe st sk st st st st s sfesie st st sk st sk sk sk ok sk sk ok sk e e e e e sl s st sfe sl sk sl s sk sl sl sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk s e s e e e e e s sl e ke e e sk e st sl e st st sfe st sfe st ok sl skl ek ok
9:00am Call to Order and Recognition of Quorum
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action Can be Taken)

At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within the jurisdiction and control of the
Board of Trustees. Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes per speaker.

If you are going to comment on a specific agenda item scheduled for action, please do so when that item is opened
for public comment. Please identify yourself and sign in on the sign-up sheet. Do not offer comment until
acknowledged by the Chair.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

The Board of Trustees reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most
efficient manner; to combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and; to remove items from the agenda
or delay discussion relating to items on the agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

Items appearing on the Consent Agenda are items that can be adopted with one motion and vote unless an item is
pulled for discussion by a Trustee or a member of the public. Members of the public who wish to have a consent
item placed on the Administrative Agenda shall make that request during public comment at the beginning of the
meeting and state why they are making that request. When items are pulled from the Consent Agenda, they will

automatically be placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda or, may be continued until the next
meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Motion to Approve Consent Calendar items 1a and 1b

la. For Possible Action. Approval of previous minutes from the June 20", 2024 general meeting.

Ib.  For Possible Action. Approval of general ledger cash balances, expenditures and investments through
June 30™, 2024.




ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

The Administrative Agenda will proceed as follows:
* The Chairman will read the agenda title into the public record.
* Staff and/or Trustees will provide relevant information on the matter.
¢ The Board will discuss the item. Once that discussion is concluded, the Chair will take public comment
at three minutes per speaker.
*  Once public comment is completed, the Board may again discuss or proceed directly to vote.

**For agenda items that are listed as “Discussion Only” with no action, public comment is not legally required.
Public comment may be accepted by the Chair at their discretion.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS PULLED FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION:

Any item pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda will be heard at this time unless continued to a later meeting.

Administrative Agenda

2 Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan ongoing projects.

3. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action awarding the “Eastside Expansion Project” to
Plenium Builders in the amount of $2,809,004 and authorize the director to sign the contract and
approve change orders up to 10%.

4. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action awarding the development of an “Economic Vitality
Assessment” to Brian Bonnenfant, Project Manager, Center for Regional Studies with the University of
Nevada, Reno in the amount not to exceed $9,600 and authorize the Director to sign the contract.

5 Discussion Only. Report from the Swim Center Director:
= User Attendance
= Staffing and Programming
= Marketing and Public Relations Information
* Employee Recognition
* Maintenance Updates
* Monthly Financial Update
= Correspondence

6. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on proposed agenda items for the August 15", 2024
general meeting.
Adjournment

Copies of the agenda were posted at 12:30pm, Thursday, July 11th, 2024 at the following locations:
1. Carson Valley Swim Center, 1600 Highway 88, Minden, NV.

2. Douglas Co. Administration Building (Historic Courthouse) 1616 Eighth St., Minden, NV.

3. Douglas County Administration Office (Minden Inn) 1594 Esmeralda St., Minden, NV

4. Carson Valley Swim Center Web Site: www.cvswim.com

5. State of NV web site: https://notice.nv.gov/

Posted By: Signed:
Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate disabled individuals desiring to attend the meeting. If you are

interested in materials call Sharon Thompson at 775-392-4063 24 hours in advance so that arrangements may be
made.




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

Agenda Item # 1a
Title: Approval of the General Meeting minutes from June20th, 2024
Background: These are the draft minutes from your previous meeting.
Funding: NA
Recommended Motion: Move to approve the General Meeting minutes from June 20", 2024
Trustee Action: Approved

Denied

No Action

Other




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
GENERAL MEETING MINUTES
June 20™, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

Carson Valley Swim Center
1600 Hwy 88, Minden, Nevada

The Board of Trustees June 20", 2024 meeting was called to order at 9:00 AM at the Carson Valley
Swim Center, Minden. NV. Board members present were Chairman Sharon DesJardins, Allen Biaggi and
Frank Dressel. Teresa Duffy was on phone. Vice Chairman Travis Lee was absent

No Public Comment

AGENDA
Upon motion by Dressel to approve agenda, seconded by Biaggi, the motion was unanimously approved.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

la.  For possible action. Previous minutes from the May 29", 2024 General Meeting and the
May 29", 2024 Special Budget Meeting.

Ib.  For possible action. Approval of general ledger cash balances, expenditures, and investments
through May 31%, 2024,

Upon motion made by Biaggi and seconded by Dressel. The consent agenda items 1a and 1b were unanimously
approved.

No Public Comment

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

2. Discussion only. Discussion Only. Presentation from Alan Reed with Warren Reed Insurance on
the cost and coverage of the pool’s property, liability, and employment practices insurance
purchased from Pool/Pact through Warren Reed Insurance.

Chairwoman DesJardins introduced item. Reed states that Warren Reed Insurance has been in business
in Douglas County since 1947. They have had a relationship with Lloyds of London for 20 years. They
have 141 members that they insure. Property insurance is getting harder to obtain. Our area is
considered a Wild Land Fire Area. Cyber has become very important. You have $1,000,000 in Cyber
Risk Coverage. You also have $2,000,000 in Environmental Liability Coverage. Your total program
cost has gone up 4.19% this year compared to an 11% increase for last year. Biaggi asked if the vacant
land next door is covered. Reed states yes vacant land is automatically picked up. Biaggi states the he
noticed that Douglas County isn’t a member. Reed states that Douglas County is self-insured. Harris
states that we get back $10,000 a year from Pool/Pact’s Educational Grant Program for conferences that
the staff and the board attend and this offsets our premium each year. We have also taken advantage of
the Risk Management Grant Program.

3. Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan ongoing projects.
Chairwoman DesJardins introduced item. McCullough states no update for the concept drawings on
the new area. Roof project should be completed in July. On the Eastside Expansion, bid opening was
last week and the bids proved the 90% estimate of $3.5M was high. The bids came in around $2.8M.
So, we are right in line with our scope and budget. We are looking at how we are going to present to the
board in the next meeting. Harris states the remaining balances in the Capital Budget are still about the
same. We paid a couple of invoices to TSK and Plenium but that’s it. We will see some significant
expenditures, once the board approves the project next month. Project to start in September. Biaggi
asks when will we know about the Splash Pad? Harris states the Douglas County has identified some
additional money to put toward that project. They are working on additional grants that would bump the
project from $250,000 to $400,000.



Then they will go into the design process. Biaggi states so it might not be until next year. Harris states
that is correct. Harris states that many of the numbers on this Capital Budget will get carried over to the
new Fiscal year Capital Budget 2024/2025.

Discussion only. Discussion and update on districts proposed economic vitality plan.
Chairwoman DesJardins introduced item. Harris states that Biaggi and I met with Brian Bonnenfant
who is from UNR’s Center for Regional Studies. He understands the scope and he is going to put it
down on paper and send it to Allen and then we will bring it forward to the board in the July meeting.
Brian is very interest in doing the project for us. This is going to be a great exercise for us to go thru.
Biaggi states that Brian has great ideas and I am very impressed with him. The cost is gong to be
around $15,000.

Discussion Only. Report from the Swim Center Director.
CVSC June 2024 Direct Report
User Attendance: See board binder documents.

e May Attendance 2023 was 9,632. May 2024 Attendance was 13,362. (See attached docs)
Programming, Staffing and Training:

e Shannon and Jack completed Pool Pact’s Risk Management Audit completed every 4 years with Dr’s
‘Tom and Rachel Griffiths. The Audit went great with minor suggestions given. Final written report has
not been received.

e Shannon and Paul attended the annual Aquatic Risk Management training in-person in Carson at Pool
Pact offices.

e Paul participated with several Lifeguards in the Regional In-Service training held at Alf Sorenson in
Sparks.

e Sarah received a scholarship to become certified as a Lifeguard Instructor Trainer and successfully
trained for 3 days at the Carson Pool.

e Carson Valley days was a success and CVSC’s float won their “Non-Commercial” category.

¢ Aquatic Supervisors working on recertifying current employees and training new ones.

e Aquatic Supervisors Interviewed 6 employees interested in being promoted to Senior Lifeguard filling
3-4 positions.

* Leadership Team (Director and Supervisors) meet monthly to plan and discuss CVSC programming &
staffing.

® Monthly In-Service Training/Meeting was conducted by all supervisors.

® Session, Drop-In and Private swim and dive lessons are combined numbers and classes have been
successful (see attached #°s)

* Water Aerobics Class attendance is staying steady at 35+ participants in the morning classes. Evening

classes are smaller but well likes and attended.
Marketing and Public Relations:

* CGlI video shoot on May 25™ was a success. | will see the results soon after the editing is complete.

* Shannon chaired the general and executive NRPS Board meetings as President of the society.

e Shannon attended the “Find a Job Friday” at DHS and met with several students.

* Social media exposure, information sharing and flyers: Facebook & Instagram updates (Sarah &
Catherine).

* Website updates (Justin, Paul, Sharon), Google Business updates (Shannon), Alignable updates
(Shannon)

* Publications: Carson Valley Business Directory, Getaway Reno/Tahoe Area, Best of CV, Almanac,
Record Courier.

* CGI Marketing Group continues to do a good job managing our online reputation with Google, Yelp
(Shannon)

® Phone Message updates (Sherrie)



e Water Aerobics Coordinator (Deanna) is emailing staff and patrons on our internal water aerobics list to
keep up-to-date on schedule or procedure changes.

Employee Recognition:

e Employee of the Month: TBD

Maintenance Updates:

o Sprinkler heads have been fixed and adjusted in the front of the facility.

e Touch-up painting has been completed in the Natatorium and Fin room.

® A lot of wood work and creativity was put into building the CV Days Parade Float.

e A crate is being built for the Wibit to be permanently stored for the summer.

e Dave is doing research to switch from pellet chlorine to liquid for all pools.

¢ Daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance projects and asset management are being completed...

excel document updated by Maintenance Supervisor and Director.

e Updating and improving the data information in Reserve Analyst (Asset Management Program).
Monthly Financial: See board binder documents.
Correspondence: See board binder documents (if applicable).

No Public Comment

For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on proposed agenda items for the July 18™,
2024meeting

CIP Update
Economic Vitality Plan
Eastside Expansion

Upon motion made by Dressel and seconded by Duffy to adjourn meeting. Motion to adjourn meeting
was unanimously approved.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item # 1b

Title:

Background:

Funding:

Recommended Motion:

Trustee Action:

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

For possible action. Approval of general ledger cash balances,
expenditures and investments through June 30", 2024.

NRS requires local government entities governing boards to
approve expenditures for their entity and to report cash balances as
well as investments. It is important for Trustees to be aware of the
financial status of the district.

NA

Move to approve the report of general ledger cash balances,
expenditures and investments through June 30™, 2024.

Approved
Denied
No Action
Other



%1566 6TLIE 00°Zr1so 6T°LIE 00'ZFL's9 LLvER'P9 00'6EE'9 51098'G
%6£°59 T6'9S1'S 0066811 T6951°S 006681 80'ZrL'6 00°£0} 88'268
%IL'E6 60€€T 1 0082961 60°€€T1 00'829'64 LE'PEE8L 00vZL'} 6E6.5'L
%S 168 0LSIS'S 00°S€8°0¢ 0L618°S 00'GE8'0S 0EBLE'SY 00'088't $8ZZL'Y
%TL 96 0'1¥8°TYr 00 £89°S0<'1 08Ty 00°/89'G0E'L 26'SY8'29z' L D0'vBS'ELL SL'/6E'10L
%EC88 €O'008°C 00°000+T €0'008°C 00°000'¥2 SEBEL'LZ 00ErL'Z 00°000°Z
%0880 (LLzeL’il) 0€'9€TEEl (LLTTL'1D) 0E'9EZ'EEL 10'656'vrL 00'vea'g 89'860'0L
10/AIA# 9L Sty = 9L’ SHy $ 000 9L G- 000 SO'E0L-
%00°001 i 0€°997°¢ o $ 0E99'S 0£'99¢'S 000 000
%EE 651 (s6'LL¥'S1) 00°000°9 (56'220'61) $ 00'000'9Z S6 LY LY 00°480'2 LZESL'Y
%000 00°00Z°1 00°00T'1 00°002°L $ 00°00Z' 000 000 000
%I8'T6 0001€°1 0005781 000LE'L $ 00'0sZ'8l 00°0v6'9l 00°18Y 00'6SH
%SET8 SLLIY 00°00S°¢ SLL19 $ 00005'E sz'z88'z 000 000
%I1SHEl (c+'889) 00°566°1 (svege) $ 00°G66'L SP'E8S'T 00°LLE ZG'LE
%91°¢6 05051 00°00Z°C 0505t $ 000022 05'6v0'C 000 000
%EEE01 (1L667) 00'000°6 (L2662) $ 00'000'6 L1°662'6 000 6t Lt
%S 1°62T (sLezen) 00'$20°1 (sLeze't) $ 00520} SLBYE'Z 00812 86'5Z
%80°€91 (zL'8€8°D) 00008t (zL8e8'2) $ 00005y zl8ge's 00'vLL 000
%LT'8S 0£TILT 000059 0EZLLT $ 00005'9 0L/8L'E 00'6.€ BLIFL
%8 91 (68'9¢L) 00000 (68°9eL) $ 00000'T 88'9£L'C 000 0026
%It 16 16'SHH'T 00°00§'8T L6'SPF'T $ 00°005'8Z 60¥S0'9Z 00'lEE'T 16°L01'E
%96'L11 (oroLo'1) 00°00€°6 (ovos9't) $ 0000E'6 0L'046'0L 00'95¢'Z 9L'LES'L
%67 9 90°8ZF 007008 90'82y $ oo'oo8 vE'LLE 000 000
%09+8 TS'T0T 00000°€1 Z5'200T $ 00000'€L 8 .66'0L 00°29% S5°€0Z
%€£0'T6 ¥ 1 ETF o 00°00LF89 (L1'SF8°€S) 15'G96'€B9 0F'0Z1L'0e9 SELIPELL 28'LZ1's8
%8868 Z6'0¥S'S 00°05Z'6€ SE'GLZ'9 £ ¥96'6E 80'60.'EE Py ¥e0'L €1'696'E
2%88°68 Z6°0vS'S 00°05Z 6 SEGLT'9 £ 796'6€ B0'60.'EE vrv80'L £1'695'S
%8T L1 09°€ly 00°00S 09°€91°1 0005Z'L ot'98 008LZ re9l
%0L 8T (9£°8¢¢) 00'0ST°1 (c€vLe) EPYEZ'L 92'809'L rrsLe 11909
%SOTLI (zezel'n 00°0SZ°01 (Tozel'n 00°0SZ'0} Z6Z8E'LL 00°651- 10'92Z
%I1L'SL 006199 00°0§TLT 006199 00'0SZ'LZ 00'LED'0Z 000LL'L 6E'LLL'E
%0L 16 90'+96° 1§ 00'0S6°€TL (Z$°021°09) 00°0S6°€TL 8+ 678°€99 6L 105t 1 S6'769°88
%000 7 00°005°81 (9t'951°8) 0000581 HSEVE0L 000 000
288101 (sS'¥8¢€) 00°005°0T SSP8E 00'005'0Z S5'88'0Z 00'69L'E 08229
%CE T8 00t¥S'8 00°008°tS (00't$5$°8) 00'00S'tS 00'956'Gk 00'92E'6 ossrl'e
%50°¢6 19V08°EY 00°0S¥°0£9 (19'708°¢H) 00'0S'0€9 B6€'G¥9'985 64'900'Z0L S9'LZE'9L
JEpng jo Sutureway  WIpng [enuuy  aduelieA (LA WEpng LA pzung-g 1spng pzunp

% S€[e10] dLA

R3png [enuuy

FONVHOSNI HLTVAH - 19

INIWAOTIIWANN ALVIS - €19

THVOIAIN - 119

ALRINDIS TVIDOS - 109

SADVA ¥ SARIVTVS - 009

SASNIAAXT adVO4d - 665
SASNAIXT TTOUAVd

JAILVILSININAY 2 TVHINTD [810],
LYOHS/HIAAO HSYD - 08L
SATA HILOA DA - v69
STDUVHD WIALSAS AUINT - €69
SADAVHD MNVE - 769
ASNAIXT ONLINNODDV - 169
ASNAIXT TVOAT - 069
AOVATIN/INANSHNIIWITE OLOY - €89
STVIAN - 189
ISNIIXT TIAVUL - 089
SNOILLdIFOSd1S/84Nd - 199
NOILYDNAT ¥ SYVNIIAGS - 099
SAITddNS ADIA0 - §+9
NOILVINAT ANV ONINIVIL TOO0d - [+9
LI - JdVMLAOS - T€9
ASNALXT TVIHOLINVI - [€9
ADVISOd - 059
ONILINTId/ONISLLYTAAY - 679
JALLVILSININAY %® TVHINTD
asuadxy
o1 5049
SO0D [B10L
dT10s SG009 J0 LS0D 1v0],
IDVTIOLS AOO0d - £9¢
SAI'IddNS AQOA - 098
ASNIAIXT ISIANVHOUI - S§€
ISNAIXT OO - 08§
a10s SAao09 40 1LS0D
PI0S $po0oD) Jo 350D
Juodu] [e)0 ],
AINODNI INVHD 86F
ASIANVHOHAN - L6
aood - 96r

STAA dISN - €0
awoduy
asuadxygpwoduy L1euipiQ




%11 1S] (LO'1SS°06.L) 0L°LT6'769 807'688'SSE 1€£'S1€'S69 95 L11°0S0°T  (08'LzL'0zD)  (IST1LO'STI)
%LYEL1 (£C6LE'66E) 00°060°'S68°C  £C6LE 10 Y0 TIT968°T +<709°967 € FO'SP1TI LT861°1T
00'000° 000£9°L 00°000'1 D0'0E9'2 00°0£9'9 00GLB'E 08'¥68'Z
00°000°1 000€9°L 00'000°L 00'0E9'L 00'0eQ'eS 0C'SLe'E 08'%¥58'
%08 €11 (£€°6L1°00%) 000ZLTO6T  £L6LF00F F0'TF8'€06'T PSPETE0EE  P0096C] LO'ESOVT
Po'ZZL'L LZ'se 020l ooeh
%¥9°0001 (88'8zTst 1) 00°6T1'91 88'8TT<H1 00'6ZL'9t 88°€5E"LOL 009052 20'£96'9L
%¥8'801 (st'0sZ'ssT) 00'S65°988°T  SHOST'SST 00'565'988'Z SrSYe'LbL'E 00ZL'ZL S0vL0'L
%1201 (FL1L0°16€)  (0£T91°00T°T)  (ST065°SH) (££'968°002'T7) (86'98¢'9vT'e) ($8°TLTED) (8L69T6F1)
%L 66 88 VoY LEY 0£'T98' V88T T6HST'8 0€ 798788 8€°L09°9L8°T  61°06T°9+T 09 L6€FET
%00°001 00'0FZ 6T 00°S1L'8TS +0°0 00'61.4'826 96714 '8ZS 29'650'7Y 85'650'7F
9%0L'S01 (0F'8L9°6T) 00'0£0°1Z¢ (0F'8L9°67) 00°0€0°1TS 0t'80L°0SS LS 6789t 18°689°01
%CT S8 SIoly 00°SLLT S8ErT 0£'808'C SerIET 000 000
%66'101 (0s'651) 00°000°8 (0c6c1) 00°000'8 05'851'8 00'85%'L 000
%ILELL (c1'88L) 00°0SL°S (c188L) 0005.'S SL'BES'9 00'500°} 05'SEE
%C89¢€1 (8€816°T) 000008 (8'8¥6'T) 00°000'8 BE'BYE'0L 00499't #6'ELY
2%9€°101 (06°€€) 0000€°T (06°¢€) 00'005'2 06'€E5'T 00°28€ vrEL
%8TSL LE916T LE96LT1 LS916T 15'98L°LL 00°088'8 LSBPL'L 00°0vL
%ty 8 0L’ 1S 000£8°t 0L'1SL 000E8'Y 0€'8L0'F 00'L6L 65681
%L8'SL L6'ETOLT 00000°Z11 L6'ETOLT 00000244 £0'9/6'F8 00284 L1 78'695'LL
%EY 66 10'89€ 00'000°59 10°89€ 00°000'59 66'LE9'V9 00°02¥'L £6'986'S
%00°001 = £V ESH9E - £PESY'9E £F'ESH'9E 000 000
%0€'1Z1 (ZL'808°95) 00°00L°99T (ZL'808°95) 0000.'99Z 71'805'€ZE 00'€61'LZ 656812
%6€791 (8L7L€1°19) 00'000°86 (8L7LE1°19) 00°000'86 8/ /EL'65) 00'8/6'9 1¥IPL'E
%10°6C1 (zzzgl'l) 00°SLOY (zzzgl'n) 0060 zz I52's 000 000
%CE'68 6F'10T°1 0000811 6+ 10T°1 00°005'L+ 15'86Z'01 00'685'L SL9pZ'L
%I1t'96 #1°0£0°S 00°€Z00v1 #1°0€0°C 00'5Z0'op L 98'vE6 PEL oo'eer'LL 12'588'6
%1666 §9°¢ 00°00€°9 $9'¢ 00'00€‘9 SEPEZ'D 00°0ES 9625
%89°011 (0079zL) 000089 (00-9zL) co'008'e 00'925'L 00°ElS 00°€85
%80°L6 €0959" 6t 00 188 10L°1  S0'9S9°6F 00'188'104'L 56 ¥22'259'L 00'267'9vL 85675 6EL
0/AIQ# (z8'8LE 1) (Z§'BLELL) 000 z9'8.€'LL 000 Z5'S9E'L
i0/AIQ# 000 - - 000 000 000 000
0/AIA# 000 e = 000 000 000 000
0/AIQ# (ST6rL'Y) = (ST6YLY) 000 STEPLY 000 00'79€E
%9181 (00°s8L°L) 00'9L8°TH (00'¢8L°L) 00'9.8'2y 00'199'08 00¥85'E sL1ETY
%ZZ 16 S0'C0L'S1 00t18°8LI SO'S0L'S] 007LR'8LL 55'80L'89L 00'SZL'PL pRISPLLL
Jspng jo Suluieway  1IBpng [Enuuy  DUBLIEA QLA 93png (LA rzung-[np 13png yzoz ungp

% SE[EI0L, (LA _13png [enuuy

WU 1IN
Awoduy JB3YIO WN
asuadxy 12410 [¥10],
asuadxy 1s319u] - 668
asuadxy 410
woduy YO [¥I0L
TIWODNI YIHLO - 66¥
AWOONI LSTHILNI - T6¥
WAHOTVA AV - #'10F
Awodul PYPO
asuadxgpwodu] 12410

Jwodu] LIBUIpIQ 1PN
asuadxyq [e10

ASNAIXA NOLLVIDAHJAd - 0S8

SNOILYYAdO TOOd (%101
INFINAINOA TIVINS - 959
SINYOJINN - +F9
SAI'TddNS - €F9
ALIAVS - TF9
STALINIONI FIAOTIINT - 0+9
JONVNIALNIVIN AdVISANYT - 9€9
TVINTY INIININOT - +£9
HIVdIY ¥ IDNVNILNIVIA - €£9
STVOIWAHD - 879
TIDNVHSNI - €79

SHLLITLLA [e10L
SYO TVANLVYN - 929
HIAMIS - $T9
YALVA - $79
JILOATY - T29
ASNIJXH AINOHJATHL - 179
JOVEUVD - 619
SHLLITLLA
SNOLLVY3dO T00d
SASNAIXT TTOYAVd I1¥I0L
NOLLVOVA dNdddyV - €09
SAXVL TIOUAVd AANUIDV - T-0F9
SIOVA AAMADDYV - 1-0F9
SINTFIWLSNIrAV XVL TIOHAVd - 6£9
NOILVSNIJIWOD SNYIWMIOM - L19
SHdd - §19
(panunuo))




8:29 AM EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

07/09/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2024
Jun 30, 24
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
101 - WELLS FARGO CHECKING ACCT. 113,308.65
108 - CASH ON HAND 850.00
112-4 - LOCAL GOV'T INVESTMENT POOL 3,539,811.19
112-5 - LOCAL GOV'T POOL OPERATING 198,058.92
Total Checking/Savings 3,852,028.76
Accounts Receivable
121 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,314.00
Total Accounts Receivable 2,314.00
Other Current Assets
12100 - INVENTORY
115 - CHEMICALS INVENTORY 10,828.44
120 - MERCHANDISE INVENTORY 3,839.44
125 - FOOD INVENTORY 1,814.02
Total 12100 - INVENTORY 16,481.90
130 - Prepaid Expense 14,959.01
170-4 - DELIQUENT TAX REC 40,622.55
Total Other Current Assets 72,063.46
Total Current Assets 3,926,406.22
Fixed Assets
150 - POOL EQUIPMENT 152,279.48
155 - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 559,852.61
156 - LAND IMPROVEMENTS 491,894.25
157 - BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT 14,337,233.16
158 - EQUIPMENT 1,312,376.79
160 - ACCUMMULTED DEPRECIATION -10,314,831.49
175 - LAND APN#1320-30-411-005 1,353,232.09
Total Fixed Assets 7,892,036.89
Other Assets
171 - DEFERRED PENSION OUTFLOWS 410,899.00
Total Other Assets 410,899.00
TOTAL ASSETS 12,229,342.11
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
201 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -64.40
Total Accounts Payable -64.40
Credit Cards
202 - CITI VISA CREDIT CARD 9,201.77
Total Credit Cards 9,201.77

Page 1




8:20 AM EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

07/09/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2024

Other Current Liabilities
200 - PAYROLL LIABILITIES

221-1 - ACCRUED PAYROLL
221-2 - ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES
229 - SUTA
230 - FEDERAL WITHOLDING
231-1 - MEDICARE EMPLOYEE
231-2 - MEDICARE COMPANY
233-1 - SOCIAL SECURITY EMPLOYEE
233-2 - SOCIAL SECURITY COMPANY
234-3 - Aflac

Total 200 - PAYROLL LIABILITIES

2110 - Direct Deposit Liabilities

218 - ACCRUED VESTED VAC PAY

219 - OPEB LIABILITY

235 - ACCRUED WORKNANS COMPENSATION
236 - NOTE PAYABLE - ZION

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
220 - NET PENSION LIABILITY
225 - DEFERRED PENSION INFLOWS

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
349 - RETAINED EARNINGS
351-1 - FUND BALANCE
355 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jun 30, 24

51,916.80
9,545.51
2,471.42

-33.00
-56.79
-5.79

-24.73

-24.73

271.60

64,111.29

-1,983.06
34,882.53
29,173.00
464.20
366,000.00

492,647.96

501,785.33

1,126,751.00
179,203.00

1,305,954.00

1,807,739.33

6,273,238.34
1,452,260.17
1,648,952.81
1,047,151.46

10,421,602.78

12,229,342.11

Page 2



81'88€°09 12301
sbpue) Ja1ild Wuswaoe|day JBpIOH 8IpUBH (001 110y Jaded el eSoH Uepien|ae 20 + HIVd3Y B IONYNILNIVIN - £€9 5|00 0107
ASSY eoepay| feidsig 30§11 022 L YHIVd3Y 8 IONYNILNIVIN - ££9) A|deng epenaN Waisap
B UBXRIYD 'POO4[ 287195 i HENIEM
SAIBA X934D OAd|FE 92 HIVd3Y B IONYNILNIVIN - €£9 dio) anse|d SIS pAlUN
-CQeT Uone|[ISU|JOge ] 'sasNd 'BseoXUBI) 181E8H 60 PS8 £ HIVd3d 8 SONYNILNIVIA - ££9 2U] '§'N BuBJY
sbeqiegEem[SL 6281 HSYYL % 831V - 729 USPUIN JO Umo]
SlSIUM PIEAUET 'SPIBIUS WD (88 1oL AL34VS - Zv9 1BIN0 Wimg
pJeog |04u0] 8oepEI|| LL #SE HIVd3Y ® JONYNILNIVIN - €E9) gsnoy Alddng
(swelipLJ6unuudisbuid|sz oy AL34VS - 2p9 Kiajes 211and102g-EPEASN JO SIEIS
6604 SNOILLJINDS8NS/SANd - 199 Aynodg
s3|bbog g1 °Z0E ISIANYHOIHIW - 655 9| 'vSN opaads
FIrl'6 SV TvHNLYN - 929 SVO 1S3MHLNOS
10400}y SSEIS BUIde, BUBOWS ON| /8 SE HIVdIY 8 IONVNILNIVIN - €9 ubis vewsg

Sy3d/Ioked 2 #202 ken[00 081 ISN3dX3 ONILNNODDY - 169 oul ‘saoinleg Bunjoog eusl

Jeq ¥oBUS Joj SYUL[05Z9E 3SN3dX3 d004 - 055 ousy Jo "0) Buiog 9u/dn uane!
skeg AD[so'L€ S317ddNS - £¥9 Joduane(q yeses
SU0ssaT BlBALd PUNjeY 0§ 2e S333 Y¥3SN - €0F! ‘BIpaJeH 829998y
soda( 108:10 J0} S884[00 80 SINIWLSNIOY X¥.L T10YAVd - 6£9 82183 ||0Jfed S#00gX0IND
vER# $Z0Z UNT[90' LY JONVHNSNI HLTV3H - 719 weibold syyeusq seakojdw3 oigng
abueyd Buunosy Auuow|c6'6 LI-34VMLJ0S -Z€9 1IBA AW 181504
B2Z1d |06 6% 3SN3dX3 d00d - 055 s Aucinp eded
(g unr) 884 eoiAiag AIIUON[SL 0.2 3SN3dX3 INOHJI 3L - 129 ONI 'VINOO
12'688'6 1¥10373 - 229 ABJauz AN
Bunsod pund Aejeudold |Gz Sl ONLLNRIJ/ONISILYIAQY - 629 dnoJ9 smaN BpeAsN
Buiquin|d Buiuueog Wwooy Ja¥207 S Usi |00 00v HIVd3Y 2 IONYNILNIVIN - €£9 0711 '80inJeg BuIULEDS S,UOSEN
dnoeg pnojdiee’s LI-34VMLI0S - Ze9 dio) yosonipy
slI84s Uo yisodeq pioy SN JOIYD-IUeS |2 858 L SIVIIWIHD - 829 Soljenby Ujeour]
AIqQuIassy Jasnyig,/m Jajj03u0) paa4 zod |9l zee HIVd3Y ® JONYNILNIVIN - €€9| HHONM
sheg AD|06EL HIYd3Y ® JONYNILNIVIN - EE9) $50J9 unsnp
aInpo [10:Aed [BNuUY §0|00°058 1I-3YVMLIOS - ZE9) l10:Aed pniu|
S1eUr] paxen) 'deog pueH Jaded 19101 SII0Y [8MOL UONOW SJour] Usalo |15 8al '} IVIHOLINGT - LES 0J Aiddns pueju|
S| Jeday'sdes | asulJeqay 195 £ay-T9eA LG 19MI9PPEIg UIRIQ YOZ [PSJ9AUN G311 'S0eE sel] smMaiog sBull3 atid1Uiod (110 BUIIQ SIUOUSINN MES BI0H Xepy 168 GEID 9E'SZ0'L HIvdIY ® IONYNILNIVIN - £€9 10deq ewon
(rzoz Ae) s1s1und/siaidos  Joj ea) AdoD |05 6ZL $317ddNS 321440 - 679 swajsAg ssauisng BaIS UbIH
5$122UU0D HAND MNI0T|96'0G HIVdIY ® IONVYNILNIVIN - €€9 5|00 Jybiai4 JogqieH
[emauay AYIUOW [66'62 1I-34YMLIO0S - 229 Appeq 09
LTESL'Y SIOYVYHO WILSAS A¥LNT - €69 sjuswwhed [eqoj9
110 Wiwaddad mes JalW Aaned aaynemiy o] Jess BuiguiidIsuigeied %0010y |66 082 L HIYd3Y ® JONYNILNIVIN - E€9 Aeq3
BuoT -sjuepuadaq (1)/1J(7) ¥z Unf 8oueInsC| WIBSH| 2L 0/2 9 IONVHNSNI HLTV3H - #19 uIsig [0oudg Auno) sejbnog
¥Z0Z UNf 10BJUGD 00 0F.L JONVYNILINIVIN 3JYOISANYT - 9£9 Buideospue] Jeig pesag
S30IAJBS PNO|D JO} JBSMOI] gam'alemjos Jansas pajepdn (00081 ALIAVS - 29 Swe)sAs Ajundag g ali4 S||IH Waseq
abes|iy'Jadeg Adon) esuadxg pood | /7 OrL 10qQy euueaq
Jie8-A BdeN 'eqn} 8did diing deAg moq)a Bulanoa SeAselS | o8 B2 L HIVd3Y 2 IONVYNILNIVIN - €9 Buoq piaeg
SIBIA JOO| JAIYse) 'SaAlusou| 8aAojdw3 'sa1|ddnS poo 4 [BI0)IUBT SBA0ID PO0S |66 GT ¢ 02}509
ubig anbiely mau wesBoid iun dnYoeg I § Od 8JEMOS BIUN 91epdN SYN 81epdN Od PIO SLIEH'S U0 SIOM|Z L B2G L-3YYMLHOS - Z£9 |EUONEUIBIU] SUORNIOS Jes|D
Yooy |einjeN uoieq|00 voe HIVd3Y 8 IONYNILNIVIA - ££9 ajIspuID
L0'EST 3ISN3dX3 INOHJII 3L - 128 ssauisng Japeyo
UoayounT JaGWeyud| 00 oF ONILNIYJ/ONISILEIAAY - 629  eoiswwo) jo Jaquey] As||eA Losie)
siA 8ys ALUon|[ 00642 3SNIdX3 ONILNNODIY - 169 0711 Buiunodoy Asjje Losed
(PZ0Z unr) soueinsu| dinb3/ases Ja1d0 |65 581 JIvINIY INIWIND3 - #€9 $80IAI8G |BIOUBUI] UOUUBD
12nj[09've HIVd3Y ® IONYNILNIVIN - ££9 8UI|0SED 00l
SPB2aY 4e1S|00 Z6E NOLLYJNA3 ANV ONINIVHL 100d - LF9 $S01) pay UEdLaWY|
pakonsaq swawnooq| |y /9 $311ddNS 321340 - 5¥9 U] “UORONIISa( JUSWNI0( UBOLAWY|
sdei1'poog'sane | aqean skeg AD'SPUBGRSHN souBLajUE N sadaNS B0y)0 SIea1aLD AiajeS Saddns poo seddns [eJolUEr UONGUISANS | £G 850 T uozewy
PINbi7 8pixolq UoGied[Z0 LFE'E SIVOIWIHD - 829 SYouIV|
SABIL 1uledINQ 1sny uod|’des) anauodlis'[@roys ung ajdels’sa|dels’sBeq yse) ‘SIaualses |68 prz HIVdIY 8 IONVYNILNIVIA - €£9 alempleH a0y
sassed 8peJed sAeQ AD[0E'8S ONLLNIMJ/ONISILYIAQY - 629 ECE

oway junowry Junooay




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

Agenda Item #2

Title: Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan
ongoing and possible future projects.

Background: East Fork Swimming Pool District contracted with Aquatic Design Group
to complete an overall evaluation of the Carson Valley Swim Center’s
equipment. The capital improvement and maintenance priority list is a
combination of that report along with the center’s Director, Maintenance
Supervisor and Project Manager’s recommendations.

Funding: NA

Recommended Discussion only

Motion:

Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

Other



09T'ETE'T S a|qe|leAy spun4{ uoldnIIsuo) Suluieway

1S9°9T12'T
6V9°LTLT YSS'SLLT 12bpng |o31dp) v,/
0¢6'T 000°0¢€ 000°0€ Suey 39ssy 1oy Aduadunuon (81 ‘'uones Suppop Jsiund ‘siRINdWwod ‘Jamolg mous) Aduaguiuo)
ZOEV8 55282 ¥55°28¢ 1sAjeuy anasay ( s|eun ‘uosiapuy QY ‘sua|/i03930ad ‘Waishs paieiSaiu
BLIDIS ‘PR pURlS 3AIQ ‘Y| epe ‘woos dwnd yiom adidal iom
Wweas apl|S ‘|apowad epe ‘pieoq uialp ‘|lemyd0d) ue|d Sue 19SSy
. 000°€T 000°€T Awuno) sejsnog (Y8noINDIN 13035 $Z,-€2,) Juswaseuey 13(0ud
£vT'8 058791 SSL'TTE puepen/yLd (€z,-zz,) uoneiolsay jooy
000°0S 00005 000'0S Auno) sej8nog (341) >1ed yse|ds
981°2L0T SPTL8TT SPZ'L8T'T ASL / wniuald uoisuedx3 apisise3
3jqehed ‘sywy asuadx3 198png Auedwo) syload #202/€20T
3ujuieway fwunowy vzoz/€20t
10B1UOD
TI8'6ES'E S |00d JUSLUISIAU| JUBUIUIIAOD) |BIO]
v20zZ ‘Wog sunr :JO se 3|qe|ieAy spun4 uoI}dNJISU0)

¥202/€20¢ 1ed) |easty
193png |ende)
191ud) wims A3jjep uosie)



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Agenda Item #3

Title:

Background:

Funding:

Recommended
Motion:

Trustee Action:

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action awarding the “Eastside
Expansion Project” to Plenium Builders in the amount of $2,809,004 and

authorize the director to sign the contract and approve change orders up to
10%.

The board of Trustees approved, in the districts 5-yr Capital Improvement
Plan, the Eastside Expansion project that includes expanding the lobby,
adding concession storage, adding maintenance storage and a generator to
allow for continuous operations in an emergency.

The project management team (Director, Project Manager, Maint.
Supervisor) has been working with TSK architects and Plenium builders
developing plans and a budget.

NA

Move to approve awarding the “Eastside Expansion Project” to Plenium
Builders in the amount of $2,809,004 and authorize the director to sign the
contract and approve change orders up to 10%.

Approved
Denied
No Action
Other



PLENIUM

BUILDERS

July 3, 2024

Re: Carson Valley Swim Center
Subject: GMP Submittal Rev-1

Plenium Builders is very appreciative of its partnership with CVSC on this endeavor and is providing
you today with the following milestone deliverables to assist with planning and executing the project
successfully:
¢ GMP Cover Letter & Qualifications
Detailed GMP Estimate
GMP Estimate Variance
GMP Project Schedule
Subcontractor Tab Sheets
Subcontractor Recommendations

GMP Estimate Summary:

General Conditions: $ 377,721
Concessions Addition: $ 193,527
Lobby Expansion: $ 967,413
Storage Addition: $ 510,527
Generator & Trash Enclosure: $ 444496
Sub-Total $ 2,493,684
General Liability (1%) $ 24937
P&P Bond $ 18,872
CMAR Fee (8%) $ 202,999
Contractor Contingency (2.5%) $ 68512

Total $ 2,809,004

Alternate (Including Markups):

* Deduct Generator & Conductors — ATS & Conduits to remain in project: <$165,560>
o Total Project Cost with Deduct: $2,643,444

Schedule
e Construction Schedule is based on a 7.5 - month duration.

Thank you again for the opportunity to be your CMAR on the East Expansion & Storage Addition
project and please feel free to reach out to me if you have any questions. We look forward to
discussing this in detail with you soon.

Sincerely,

Plenium Builders
Devin Harrill
Estimator

NV LIC #76482 B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
(775) 398-0123



GMP Documents:
e 100% CD Drawings by TSK dated April 19, 2024
100% CD Specifications by TSK dated April 19, 2024
100% CD Structural Calculations by Nelson Wilcox dated April 16, 2024
Addendum #1 by TSK dated May 31, 2024

CLARIFICATIONS & SPECIFIC EXCLUSIONS
1) GENERAL CONDITIONS (7.5 Months)

a. Project Management & Administration
b. Full-time onsite Superintendent

Plans

Temporary power & lights

Project management collaboration website

- 0o o o

Site toilets & hand wash stations

Temporary construction fence

> @

Temporary inside protection

Safety equipment

Project sign

= =

Continuous cleanup & dumpsters

Final cleaning
Snow removal allowance

m.
n. Misc. tools, equipment & rental
0. Excludes monthly utility costs

p.

Excludes project office (Assumes use of upstairs lobby area)

2) SITEWORK
a. Site demolition
i. Sidewalks & ramps
ii. AC paving
iii. Landscaping & irrigation
iv. Planter
v. Flagpole & footing
vi. Trash enclosure & footing
vii. Electrical pad

viii. Post curbs

NV LIC #76482 B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
(775) 398-0123



=

Selective demolition

c. Regrading & compaction

d. Foundation excavation

e. Interior plumbing excavation
f.  Site electrical excavation

g. Over-excavation & fill

i. Includes 1’ over-excavation under slabs and 2’ over-excavation under & 3’ laterally

for all footings per detail 11/SD2

h. Aggregate base courses
i. Asphalt paving

i. Includes patching surrounding Storage Building & Trash Enclosure
j-  Fences & gates

i. New Chain-Link gate tied into existing fence line
k. Landscaping & irrigation allowance

i. Includes repair of existing sod & irrigation
I.  Site concrete

i. Sidewalks & ramps

ii. Housekeeping pads

Flagpole base

iv. Trash enclosure pad & footings
v. Bollard footing & fill
vi. Post curbs

m. Excludes survey (Provided by Owner)

3) CONCRETE

a. Reinforcing steel
b. CIP Concrete

Slab-on-grade
Building footings

Reinforcing steel

iv. VC-5 lithium cure
v. 186mil Vapor barrier
vi. Concrete washout

vii. Base plate grouting

NV LIC #76482B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431

(775) 398-0123



N =

o !~

viii. Locker bases

ix. Cold weather protection

4) MASONRY
a. Precision CMU at storage area, concessions, and lobby columns
i. Bucks for openings
ii. Hollow metal door frame grouting
iii. Standard colors
iv. Reinforcing steel
v. Cold weather protection
b. CMU FRP strengthening
i. Preliminary design assumptions to be verified by EOR:

Existing masonry compressive strength fm = 1500psi.

Existing longitudinal reinforcement at bottom of the lower lintel is 2-#4 Gr.60 with cc = 7" from
bottom face.

Existing longitudinal reinforcement at bottom of the upper lintel is 2-#5 Gr.60 with cc = 7" from
bottom face.

For design purposes, upper lintel height is 4'-0" and lower lintel height is 2'-0".

See page 7 for the hand-calculated moment and shear demands.

FRP anchors have not been specified and therefore not included in this proposal.

5) METALS
a.  Structural steel
i. Wide flange & HSS beams & columns
b. Metal roof deck
c. Metal roof joists
d. Miscellaneous metals
i. Ledgers
ii. Bent plates

iii. Anchor bolts

Carenon VVallavy Swim Centar Evnancinn (2MP
Larson ‘-_’o‘-}a:‘g awim Lenter cxpansion Gl

e. Excludes downspout boots, cast iron tree grates, cast iron trench castings, and hidden

access panels from specification 055000 metal fabrications per addendum #1.

6) WOOD & PLASTICS
a. Rough carpentry
i. Wood roof framing

ii. Shop-Fabricated wood trusses

NV LIC #76482B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
(775) 398-0123



ii. Overfill roof framing
iv. Plywood roof sheathing
v. Hardware

b. Exterior temporary lobby wall opening barrier

7) THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION
a. Building insulation
b. Standing seam metal roofing
i. Tie-into existing roof panels as required
ii. New metal roof, wall and soffit panels
ii. Temporary roofing
iv. Gutters & downspouts
Sheet metal & flashing trim
Firestopping & caulking
e. Joint sealing & caulking

8) DOORS & WINDOWS
a. Doors, frames & hardware
i. Hollow metal doors & frames
ii. Door hardware
b. Overhead door
i. Manual operated 16'x8’ overhead sectional door

¢. Aluminum-Framed Storefronts
i. Exterior and interior storefront systems at lobby
i. Bronze anodized finish
ii. Excludes exterior self-cleaning coating (not manufactured anymore according to
subcontractors)
d. Vinyl windows

9) FINISHES
a. Metal Stud Framing & Gypsum Drywall

NV LIC #76482 B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
(775) 398-0123



i. Non-structural metal stud framing
ii. Drywall, tape and texture; level 4 finish
iii. Acoustical ceiling tile & grid
iv. Linear metal ceilings
v. Sound absorbing ceiling unts
1. Suspended from structure similar to current panels at the main pool area
vi. Includes engineering, calculations, and shop drawings for exterior framing
b. 3-coat stucco system
c. Ceramic tile
i. Wall tile & trim at existing columns
d. Painting
i. Painting of walls, gyp ceilings, doors & frames
ii. Paint exposed ceilings & MEP
iii. CMU painting
e. Excluded sealed or polished concrete (Provided by Owner)
f.  Excludes Unistrut or support framing for panel suspension

g. Excludes anti-graffiti coating

10) SPECIALTIES
a. Flagpole

i Includes removal, storage, and reinstallation of existing flagpole at a new location

11) EQUIPMENT
a. N/A

12) FURNISHINGS.
a. N/A

13) SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION
a. N/A

14) ELEVATORS
a. N/A

NV LIC #76482 B | CALIC #983684 8
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
(775)398-0123




15) MECHANICAL

a.

b.

FIRE SPRINKLER

i. NFPA 13 & AHJ Design Requirements, Submittal Package & Permit / Plan Check
Fees

PLUMBING
i. Plumbing fixtures
ii. Waste & vent systems
iii. Domestic water systems
iv. Gas piping systems with supports as indicated

v. Front desk to remain in place; vent piping to be routed around in lieu of what's
indicated on P2.02

i. Exhaust fans
ii. Electrical unit heaters
ii. Split system condenser units
iv. Roof top units
v. Complete air distribution systems
vi. HVAC controls
vii. Equipment check, test & start-up

viii. Air balancing

16) ELECTRICAL

a.
b.

T@e ™o a0

Power distribution & ATS
400kw generator
i. Includes Generac in lieu of MTU
ii. Generac Level 2 enclosure in lieu of MTU level 3 (Same sound ratings)
ii. 24-hour base fuel tank
Lighting fixtures & control
Tele/Data/Camera systems
Fire alarm system
Raceways & circuitry
Equipment connections

3 party testing & arc flash study

NV LIC #76482 B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
(775)398-0123



Carson Valley Swim Center Expansion GMP

ALLOWANCE SCHEDULE

1.
2.

Snow Removal $5,175
Landscape & Irrigation $10,626

GENERAL EXCLUSIONS

1)
2)
3)
4)
9)
6)
7)
8)
9)

Permits and all associated governmental fees/costs
Water & sewer connection fees & assessments
Power application/service fees

Hazardous materials testing / abatement

3 party owner provided testing and inspections
Commissioning

Plan check fees

FF&E

Special inspections

10) Design & engineering other than design build scopes

SPECIFIC EXCLUSIONS

PO

Dewatering

Surveying (By Owner)

Sealed or polished concrete or epoxy flooring (By Owner)
Builders Risk (By Owner)

NV LIC #76482B | CALIC #983684 B
825 Steneri Way, Sparks, NV 89431
. (775)398-0123



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
MINDEN, DOUGLAS COUNTY, NEVADA

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK
CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DESCRIPTION

CONTRACT

PERFORMANCE BOND

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND
FORM OF GUARANTEE

CMAR SURETY COMPANY CONTACTS

PAGE

11
13
15
16



CONTRACT

This OWNER-CMAR Construction Agreement is made by and between the East Fork Swimming Pool District
of 1600 Highway 88, Minden, NV 89423, hereinafter referred to as "OWNER," and the Construction Manager

at Risk named below, hereinafter referred to as “CMAR,” is made and entered into as follows:

Execution Date: July 18, 2024

Project Identification

EFSPD Project No.: CMAR

Project Name: East Side Expansion

Project Location: 1600 Highway 88, Minden NV
PWP Project No.: DO-2024-417

OWNER:

East Fork Swimming Pool District
1600 Highway 88

Minden, NV 89423

(775) 782-8840

CMAR:

Plenium Builders
825 Steneri
Sparks NV 89431
(775) 398-0123

Architect:

TSK Architects

225 South Arlington Avenue, Suite B
Reno, NV 89501

(775) 857-2949

ARTICLE 1: GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE




For furnishing of all materials and all labor, tools, and appliances and all expense, direct or indirect,
connected with the proper execution of the Work and of maintaining the same until it is accepted by OWNER,
the OWNER will pay and CMAR shall accept as full compensation therefore, a total sum not to exceed:

$ 2,809,004.00
Written: Two Million, Eight Hundred and Nine Thousand and Four Dollars

the Guaranteed Maximum Price ("GMP"). This GMP is for the performance of the Work in accordance with
the Contract Documents (as defined in Article 7 hereof).

The GMP is for the total amount and is not to be construed as a “line item” guarantee. If one category
exceeds the budgeted amount, and another is less than the budgeted amount, they shall off set each other to
the extent the total GMP is not exceeded.

ARTICLE 2: ALLOWANCES
CMAR has included in the GMP for the Cost of the Work “Allowances” for items for which final costs have not

yetbeen determined. Allowances include the cost to CMAR (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials
and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the project location, and all applicable taxes.
CMAR’s costs for unloading and handling on the project location, labor, installation costs, bond and
insurances costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the allowances have already been

included in the GMP. No demand for additional payment on account of any of the foregoing will be valid.

Whenever during the course of the construction, costs are less than the allowances, the OWNER may at its
option allocate the savings to the OWNER's Contingency, reallocate the funds to another item, or take a
deductive change order.

In no event shall there be an increase in the GMP or a material change in the Scope of the Work without
OWNER’s prior written consent through a Contract Change Order. However, if the final price of an allowance
exceeds the GMP amount, CMAR may be allowed bond and insurances costs, overhead and profit on the
difference between the GMP allowance amount and the final price.

ARTICLE 3: CONTINGENCY FUNDS
The GMP shall include a Construction Contingency that is for CMAR’s exclusive use and may be used by

CMAR at its sole discretion.



Any funds remaining in the Contractor’s Contingency shall be split between CMAR and OWNER with
OWNER receiving fifty-one (51) percent, and CMAR receiving forty-nine (49) percent and credited as
indicated in Exhibit “B" — Compensation Conditions, Article 6.0 FINAL PAYMENT.

The OWNER'’s Contingency shall not be included in the GMP and is for OWNER's exclusive use and may be
used by OWNER at its sole discretion.

ARTICLE 4: COST SAVINGS
CMAR shall work cooperatively, in good faith, with subcontractors, Architect, and OWNER to identify

appropriate opportunities to reduce the Project costs and promote cost savings without sacrificing quality.
Any identified cost savings from the GMP shall be released by CMAR as soon as practical to OWNER with
intent to fund additional program elements.

Any funds remaining as a result of cost savings shall be split between CMAR and OWNER with OWNER
receiving fifty-one (51) percent, and CMAR receiving forty-nine (49) percent and credited as indicated in
Exhibit “B" — Compensation Conditions, Article 6.0 FINAL PAYMENT.

ARTICLE 5: TIME OF THE ESSENCE

Time is of the essence, and CMAR acknowledges that the time for completion of the Work is sufficient for it to
perform all the Work. In case of failure on the part of CMAR to complete the Work within the time(s) specified
in the Contract Documents or within such additional time(s) as may be granted by formal action of the East
Fork Swimming Pool District, Board of Trustees, OWNER reserves the right to require CMAR pay to OWNER,
as liguidated damages, the sum(s) indicated in Exhibit “B” — Compensation Conditions, Article 7.0
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.

Contract Time:

ARTICLE 6: AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The term “Work” includes all labor, materials, services, equipment, tools, transportation, power, water,

permanent and temporary utilities, connections, provisions for safety, and all incidental and other things
necessary to produce the finished construction of the Project as described by the Contract Documents.
CMAR agrees to provide all labor, materials, equipment, tools and services necessary, and to do everything
required by the Contract Documents as necessary to complete all Work required for the Project within the
time specified for Substantial Completion of the Work.

ARTICLE 7: INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS




OWNER and CMAR mutually agree that the following documents are incorporated into and made a part of
this Contract by reference (the “Contract Documents”):

Exhibit A: General Conditions of the Contract

Exhibit B: Compensation Conditions

Exhibit C: Addenda

Exhibit D: Guaranteed Maximum Price as approved by the East Fork Swimming Pool District, Board of
Trustees

Exhibit E: Technical Specifications

Exhibit F: List of Drawings

In addition, the following items, which are not exhibits to this Contract, shall constitute part of the Contract
Documents:

Contract Drawings

Construction Schedule submitted pursuant to Exhibit “A” — General Conditions, Article 11.0
CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND DATA, and any amendments approved by the OWNER
Current Prevailing Wage Rates, Douglas County, Nevada

CMAR Contract for Preconstruction Services, by reference

CMAR Fee Proposal submitted with Request for Proposal

ARTICLE 8: GOVERNING ORDER OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Bidding and Contract Documents include various divisions, sections and conditions, which are essential

parts for the Work to be provided by the successful Bidder. A requirement occurring in one is as binding as

though occurring in all. They are intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a complete

Work. In case of discrepancy, the following precedence will govern:

Contract

Exhibit “A” — General Conditions

Exhibit “B” — Compensation Conditions

Exhibit “C" — Addenda

Exhibit “D” — Guaranteed Maximum Price as approved by the EFSPD Board of Trustees

Exhibit "E” — Technical Specifications

Exhibit “F” — List of Drawings

Contract Drawings

Construction Schedule submitted pursuant to Exhibit “A” — General Conditions, Article 11.0
CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND DATA, and any amendments approved by the OWNER

Current Prevailing Wage Rates, Douglas County, Nevada
4




e CMAR Contract for Preconstruction Services, by reference
* CMAR Fee Proposal submitted with Request for Proposal

Addenda, Change Orders and Supplemental Agreements will take precedence over any of the above.
Detailed plans shall have precedence over general plans.

CMAR shall take no advantage of any apparent error or omission in the Bidding Documents. In the event
CMAR discover such an error or omission, CMAR shall immediately notify OWNER. OWNER will then make

such corrections and interpretations as may be deemed necessary for fulfilling the intent of the Bidding
Documents.

ARTICLE 9: CONTRACT TIME

CMAR shall commence the Work to be performed under this Contract on the date set by OWNER in the
written Notice to Proceed, continuing the Work with diligence and shall complete the entire Work in
accordance with Exhibit “A” — General Conditions, Article 11.0 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND DATA.
Further, in the event interim milestone completion dates are established in Exhibit “A” — General Conditions,
Article 11.0 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND DATA for separable portions of the Work, CMAR agrees to
complete said separable portions of the Work in accordance with said milestone dates.

ARTICLE 10: AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS

This Contract embodies the entire agreement between OWNER and CMAR and supersedes all other writings,
oral agreements, or representations. The parties shall not be bound by or be liable for any statement,
representation, promise, inducement or understanding of any kind or nature not set forth herein. No changes,
amendments or modifications of any of the terms or conditions of the Contract shall be valid unless reduced
to writing and signed by both parties.

ARTICLE 11: ASSIGNMENT RIGHTS

OWNER and CMAR each binds themselves, their partners, successors, assignees and legal representatives

to the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assignees and legal representatives of such other
party in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract.

No party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under this Contract without the
prior written consent of the other parties for which approval may be withheld for any reason or for no reason
whatsoever. CMAR shall not assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of the Contract or its right, title or

interest in or to the same or any part thereof, without prior consent of OWNER and concurred to by the
sureties.




ARTICLE 12: INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, CMAR shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless OWNER, and its
agents, employees, and members of the Board of Trustees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and

expenses, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees. arising out of or resulting from performance of this
Contract, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness,
disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property caused by the negligent acts or omissions
of CMAR, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them for whose acts they may be liable,
regardless of whether such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by OWNER indemnified
hereunder. However, in no event shall CMAR be required to indemnify OWNER for claims, damages, loss or
expenses arising out of OWNER's sole negligence. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate,

abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person
described in this Article.

In any and all claims against OWNER, its agents, employees, or any of the members of the Board of Trustees
by any employee of the contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them
or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under the first paragraph
of this Article shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the contractor or any subcontractor under workers' compensation
acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

CMAR’s obligations of this Article shall not extend to the liability of the Architect or its employees arising out of
(a) the preparation or approval of maps, sketches, opinions, reports, surveys, CCOs, designs, or
specifications, or (b) the giving of or the failure to give directions or instructions by the Architect or its

employees provided such giving or failure to give is the primary cause of injury or damage.

ARTICLE 13: PATENT INDEMNITY

CMAR hereby indemnifies and shall defend and hold harmless OWNER and its agents, employees, and
members of the Board of Trustees respectively from and against all claims, losses, costs, damages, and

expenses, including attorney's fees, incurred by OWNER and its agents, employees, and members of the
Board of Trustees respectively, as a result of or in connection with any claims or actions based upon
infringement or alleged infringement of any patent and arising out of the use of the equipment or materials
furnished under the Contract by CMAR, or out of the processes or actions employed by, or on behalf of
CMAR in connection with the performance of the Contract. CMAR shall, at its sole expense, promptly defend
against any such claim or action unless directed otherwise by OWNER or its representatives provided that
OWNER or its representatives shall have notified CMAR upon becoming aware of such claims or actions, and

provided further that CMAR's aforementioned obligations shall not apply to equipment, materials, or




processes furnished or specified by OWNER or and its agents, employees, and members of the Board of
Trustees.

CMAR shall have the right, in order to avoid such claims or actions, to substitute at its expense non-infringing
equipment, materials, or processes, or to modify such infringing equipment, materials and processes so they
become non-infringing, or obtain the necessary licenses to use the infringing equipment, material or
processes, provided that such substituted and modified equipment, materials and processes shall meet all the
requirements and be subject to all the provisions of this Contract.

ARTICLE 14: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

==, NUETENDENT CONTRACTOR

The parties agree that CMAR is an independent contractor and that this contract is entered into in accordance
with Nevada law that CMAR is not an employee of OWNER, and that there shall be no:

1. Withholding of income taxes by OWNER;:

2. Industrial insurance coverage provided by OWNER:

3. Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of OWNER;

4. Participation or contribution by either the independent contractor or OWNER to the Public
Employees Retirement System:

o

Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave;

Unemployment compensation coverage provided by OWNER.

CMAR represents that it is fully experienced and properly qualified to perform the class of work provided for
herein, and that it is properly licensed, equipped, organized and financed to perform such work. CMAR shall
act as an independent contractor and not as the agent of OWNER in performing the Contract and is
responsible for maintaining complete control over its employees and all of its suppliers and Subcontractors.
Nothing contained in this Contract or any Subcontract awarded by CMAR shall create any contractual
relationship between any such supplier or Subcontractor and OWNER. However, each subcontract and
supplier agreement entered into by CMAR, relative to the Contract, shall bind such Subcontractor or supplier
to the same terms and conditions as appear in the Contract. CMAR shall perform all work in accordance with
its own methods subject to strict compliance with the Contract.

ARTICLE 15: RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract documents and the rights and remedies available

thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise
imposed or available by law.



ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY

The Contract and the various provisions thereof are severable. Should any part, clause, provisions or terms

be declared invalid, ineffective, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the Contract shall remain in full
legal force and effect.

ARTICLE 17: FINAL PAYMENT

As provided in Exhibit “A” — General Conditions, when the Work and all requirements of the Contract
Documents are fully and satisfactorily completed, OWNER will pay to CMAR a final payment consisting of the
remaining unpaid balance of the Contract Sum due CMAR after accounting for OWNER’s share of funds
remaining in CMAR's Construction Contingency Fund and OWNER's share of funds remaining as a result of
Cost Savings. The acceptance of the final payment by CMAR shall constitute a full and final release and
waiver of all CMAR claims and rights of claim against the OWNER relating or pertaining to the Work.

Acceptance of the final payment by CMAR shall terminate OWNER-CMAR Construction Agreement after
which time the applicable terms and conditions for Warranties and Insurance shall continue to apply.

ARTICLE 18: FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

In connection with the performance of work under this Contract, CMAR agrees not to discriminate against any

employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, disability, or age. Such agreement shall include, but not be
limited to employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
CMAR further agrees to insert this provision in all subcontracts hereu nder, except subcontracts for standard

commercial supplies or raw materials. Any violation of such provision by CMAR shall constitute a material
breach of this Contract,

ARTICLE 19: INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
A certificate of insurance evidencing the required coverage, as stipulated in the General Conditions of the
Contract, shall be filed with OWNER prior to CMAR mobilizing onto the Project site and prior to

commencement of any work on the Project.

ARTICLE 20: BONDS AND GUARANTY
CMAR shall furnish a performance bond, payment bond and guarantee bond in the form attached hereto and

in accordance with the requirements set forth in Exhibit “A” — General Conditions, Article 4.4 Bond
Requirements.



ARTICLE 21: STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

CMAR agrees to all terms and conditions of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), the Nevada Administrative
Code (NAC) and local law as may apply to this Contract and to the work performed under this Contract and
agrees to comply with all such applicable laws and regulations.

ARTICLE 22: INFORMATION ACCESS

The books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the CMAR relevant to this

Contract shall be subject to inspection, examination and audit by OWNER, its agents and representatives,

and the State of Nevada during the course of this project and for 3 years after its completion.

ARTICLE 23: EXAMINATION OF DOCUMENTS

Execution of this Contract by each party shall constitute the representation by each such party that it has
examined the contents of all the Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, CMAR General Conditions
of the Contract, that it has read and understands the same, and specifically agrees to be bound thereby.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

REST OF PAGE LEFT BLANK




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the East Fork Swimming Pool District Board of Trustees has authorized its Director
to execute this Contract on behalf of the said OWNER, and CMAR has hereunto set its hand and seal the day

and year above written.

OWNER:

EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
MINDEN, DOUGLAS COUNTY, NEVADA

By:
SHANNON HARRIS
DIRECTOR
Date: This day of , 2023.
CONTRACTOR:
By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date: This day of , 2023.

10



PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

THAT , as CMAR, and
as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto
, hereinafter called OWNER, in the sum of
dollars (5
), for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,

administrators, Successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, said CMAR has been awarded and is about to enter into the annexed Contract with said OWNER
to perform all Work required under the GMP Schedule(s)

of OWNER’s specifications entitled

The Surety further agrees that whenever CMAR shall be, and is declared by OWNER to be, in default under
the Contract (and said default shall be construed to be any breach of any of the provisions of the Contract on

with its terms and conditions and shall fully indemnify and hold harmless OWNER from all costs, damages

and expenses which may arise thereafter (including reasonable attorney's fees) and which OWNER may
suffer by reason of Surety's failure to do so.

i



PERFORMANCE BOND - CONTINUED

The Surety and CMAR further agree that any modifications, additions or alterations which may be made in the
terms of the Contract or in the Work to be done thereunder, or any extensions of the Contract, or other
forbearance on the part of either OWNER or CMAR to the other, shall not in any way release CMAR and the
Surety, or either of them, their heirs, assigns, executors, administrators and successors, from their liability
hereunder, notice to Surety of any such modifications, additions, extensions or forbearance being hereby
expressly waived.

The sum of this Performance Bond is in addition to the sum of the Payment Bond being executed
concurrently herewith.

SIGNED AND SEALED, this day of , 20

(SEALED AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY)

(Seal)
CMAR
BY:
(Signature)
(Seal)
Surety
BY:
(Signature)

12




LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT as
CMAR, and , as Surety, are held and firmly
bound unto hereinafter called OWNER, in the sum of

dollars ($ ), for the payment of which sum well

and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly
and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, said CMAR has been awarded and is about to enter into the annexed Contract with said OWNER
to perform all Work required under the GMP Schedule(s)

of

OWNER's specifications entitled

NOW, THEREFORE, if said CMAR, or subcontractors, fail to pay for any materials, equipment, or other
supplies, or for rental of same, used in connection with the performance of work contracted to be done, or for
amounts due under applicable state law for any work or labor thereon, said Surety will pay for the same in an

13




LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND - CONTINUED

PROVIDED, that any alterations in the Work to be done or the materials to be furnished, which may be made
pursuant to the terms of said Contract, shall not in any way release either said CMAR or said Surety
thereunder, nor shall any extensions of the time granted under the provisions of said Contract release either
said CMAR or said Surety, and notice of such alterations or extension of the Contract is hereby waived by

said Surety. The sum of this Payment Bond is in addition to the sum of the Performance Bond being executed
concurrently herewith.

SIGNED AND SEALED, THIS day of . 20

(SEALED AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY)

(Seal)
CMAR
BY:
(Signature)
(Seal)
(Surety)
BY:
(Signature)

14




FORM OF GUARANTEE

GUARANTEE FOR

(Name and address of prime contractor)

We hereby guarantee that the

(Description of the work)

Which we have constructed, has been done in accordance with the plans and specifications; that the Work
constructed will fulfill the requirements of the guaranties included in the Contract Documents. We agree to
repair or replace any or all of our work, together with any other adjacent work which may be damaged in so
doing, that may prove to be defective in the workmanship or materials within a period of one year from the
date of filing of Notice of Final Completion of the above named Work by the County of Douglas, State of
Nevada, without any expense whatsoever to said County of Douglas, ordinary wear and tear and unusual
abuse or neglect excepted.

In the event of our failure to comply with the above-mentioned conditions within five (5) calendar days after
being notified in writing by the East Fork Swimming Pool District, Minden, Nevada, we, collectively or
separately, do hereby authorize East Fork Swimming Pool District to proceed to have said defects repaired
and made good at our expense and we will honor and pay the costs and charges therefore upon demand.
When correction work is started, it shall be carried through to completion.

DATED:

(Notice of completion filing date)

(SEAL AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY)

(Seal)
(CMAR)
BY:
(Signature)
(Seal)
(Surety)
BY:
(Signature)

15




CMAR SURETY COMPANY CONTACTS

PERFORMANCE BOND NO.

Surety Name:

Address:

Phone No:

Fax No:

Contact:

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND NO.

Surety Name:

Address:

Phone No:

Fax No:

Contact:

GUARANTY BOND NO.

Surety Name:

Address:

Phone No:

Fax No:

Contact:

16



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET

Agenda Item #4

Title: For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action awarding the
development of an “Economic Vitality Assessment” to Brian Bonnenfant,
Project Manager, Center for Regional Studies with the University of
Nevada, Reno in the amount not to exceed $9,600 and authorize the director
to sign the contract.

Background: The Board of Trustees and Director identified in the Districts Strategic
plan the need for an economic impact analysis to demonstrate the value of
the facility to the region.

Funding: NA

Recommended

Motion: Move to approve awarding the development of an “Economic Vitality
Assessment” to Brian Bonnenfant, Project Manager, Center for Regional
Studies with the University of Nevada, Reno in the amount not to exceed
$9,600 and authorize the Director to sign the contract.

Trustee Action: Approved

Denied
No Action

Other




Center For Regional Studies

College of Business

University of Nevada, Reno

Brian Bonnenfant
Project Manager
(775) 784-1771
bonnen@unr.edu

July 9, 2024

Carson Valley Swim Center Trustees
1600 NV-88
Minden, NV 89423

Re: Economic and Qualitative Impacts of the Carson Valley Swim Center

The proposed objective of the analysis is to calculate countywide economic impacts resulting
from non-county residents visiting the Carson Valley Swim Center (CVSQC), calculate
economic impacts from CVSC operations, and to research and discuss qualitative impacts on
the health of the community.

L. Economic Impact Analysis of Non-Local Visitors

Using fiscal-year 2024 data obtained from the Carson Valley Swim Center, the analysis will
estimate the economic impact of visitor spending on Douglas County’s economy using the
latest IMPLAN input-output model. Visitor data will be sourced from CVSC swim/diving
event, field trip, public safety training, rental facilities, and other attendance manifests that
create visitation to Douglas County from outside the county.

Lengths of stay will be estimated using event data, and spending budgets will source Reno-
Sparks Convention & Visitors Authority’s annual visitor survey if more local surveys cannot
be implemented. An attempt to estimate non-local individuals visiting CVSC will be made by
applying the current ratio of resident to non-resident memberships to all individual
visitation, although we assume that the ratio will under-represent total non-local day clients.

The analysis will estimate the direct, indirect, and induced impact of visitor spending on
Douglas County businesses (output), labor income, and employment.

II. Economic Impact Analysis of Operations

This analysis will estimate the dollar impact of the swim center’s purchases of goods and
services, its payment of wages to its employees, resulting household spending by employees,
and capital expenditures. Direct, indirect, and induced impacts associated with each
expenditure type will be estimated, including on-going impacts of operations and one-time
impacts of construction/upgrade activities. The analysis will source the swim center’s fiscal-




Economic Impact of the Carson Valley Swim Center Page |2

year 2024 operating budget for operating data inputs and the $1.3 million east side
expansion project for CAPEX impacts.

The analysis will estimate the direct, indirect, and induced impact of visitor spending on
Douglas County businesses (output), labor income, and employment.

III. Qualitative Impact Analysis

In addition to the swim center’s economic impacts from its operations and incentivizing non-
locals to visit and spend money in Douglas County, there are a variety of qualitative benefits
that the swim center brings to the local community. These benefits are difficult to quantify
but provide significant quality of life to Douglas County residents. Literature searches and
other research will be conducted on how the various swim center activities benefit impact
and strengthen communities. These benefits include but are not limited to:

* Health and safety benefits for youth.

e Health and safety benefits for seniors.

» Health and safety benefits for disabled.

e Health and safety benefits for families.

e Training facilities for public safety personnel and individuals.
* Exceptional recreational opportunities for a community.

IV. Final Report

Prior to the final report, a draft will be provided for your review and relevant edits will be
added. The professional fee to provide professional services as outlined above is estimated
at $9,600. This estimate is a “not to exceed” amount and will be revised should any changes
be made to the above scope of work.

We sincerely appreciate this opportunity to support the Carson Valley Swim Center.

Brian Bonnenfant
Project Manager




CVSC July 2024 Director’s Report

User Attendance: See board binder documents.
® June Attendance 2023 was 16,649. June 2024 Attendance was 19,057 (14.5% increase -See attached docs)

Programming, Staffing and Training:

e Shannon attended Pool Pacts oversite committee meeting.

* Shannon as President of the Nv Recreation & Parks Society led the annual retreat in Tonopah for two days.

e CVSCis partnering with the Partnership of Community Resources offering a free family swim day with a voucher
system the partnership is managing.

e Jr Lifeguard program is alive and well with 21 enrolled 11-14yr olds in the two-week program. Guest speakers
include Search and Rescue, Dispatch, EFFPD, Teresa Duffy.

e Leadership Team (Director and Supervisors) meet monthly to plan and discuss CVSC programming & staffing.

* Monthly In-Service Training/Meeting was conducted by all supervisors.

® Session, Drop-In and Private swim and dive lessons are combined numbers and classes have been successful (see
attached #'s)

¢ Water Aerobics Class attendance is staying steady at 35+ participants in the morning classes. Evening classes are
smaller but well likes and attended.

Marketing and Public Relations:

® CGl video uploaded to cvswim.com website.

e Shannon chaired the general NRPS Board meetings as President of the society.

 Shannon working with Record Courier on “Relocation Guide” for the Chamber of Commerce.

® Social media exposure, information sharing and flyers: Facebook & Instagram updates (Sarah & Catherine).

* Website updates (Justin, Paul, Sharon), Google Business updates (Shannon), Alignable updates (Shannon)
Publications: Carson Valley Business Directory, Getaway Reno/Tahoe Area, Best of CV, Almanac, Record Courier.
CGI Marketing Group continues to do a good job managing our online reputation with Google, Yelp (Shannon)

* Phone Message updates (Sherrie)
® Water Aerobics Coordinator (Deanna) is emailing staff and patrons on our internal water aerobics list to keep up-to-
date on schedule or procedure changes.

Employee Recognition:

* Employee of the Month: Julie Scharrer, Cashier — Julie is often times used to train and work with new employees as
they are onboarded. She is consistent, reliable, completes financial deposits, manages drop-in lessons, handles lost
and found and donations to MS, manages the locker rentals and is Sherrie’s overall go-to person for help and
support,

Maintenance Updates:

* Yellow jackets are being managed... Dave will start working with an exterminator.

e Dave is working on receiving quotes for additional steps and railing to be added to the outdoor pool area.

e Jack will manage the outdoor pool steps repair project in July.

* Dave is researching the replacement of the Therapy Pool filter as part of the Asset Mang Plan.

e Daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance projects and asset management are being completed... excel
document updated by Maintenance Supervisor and Director.

® Updating and improving the data information in Reserve Analyst (Asset Management Program).

Monthly Financial: See board binder documents.
Correspondence: See board binder documents (if applicable).




East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2022-2023

July Aug | Sept | Oct [ Nov | Dec | Jan Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22265| 15621 9610/ 8532| 6962 6803| 7138| 7915| 9485| 11261 9632| 16649] 131873
Attendance:
Lessons 1498| 650| 246| 461| 392| 197 356 429| 543| 577 576| 1045 6970
DDST 1869| 1440| 1760| 1680 1300| 1320 1320| 1200 1320 1200/ 1020| 1000 16429
Mem/Pass Visits 3893| 3968| 3118( 3052 2477 2523 2370] 2331| 2907| 3078| 2910 3647 36274
DHS Aquatics 0] 125] 588| 434| 6200 272 558| 464 682 540 460 270 5013
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 400| 396 352| 220 0 1368
Drop-In Visits| 15005| 9438| 3898 2905 2173| 2491 2534| 3091| 3637| 5514| 4446 10687 65819
User Fees| 72,511|58,663|28,952 24,577|21,532(22,332(31,606 30,146|31,028(35,516|45,732(76,502 $479,097
East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2023-2024
July Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec Jan Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22813| 14787| 8898| 8057| 7373] 7389 8997| 8630| 10647| 11561| 13362 19057 141571
Attendance:
Lessons 1703| 786| 548| 415 481 200] 260] 506| 567| 638 1215| 1288 8607
DDST 1000] 1100 1050 1100{ 1000 1000 1150 950 1050 1100/ 1150 1000 12650
Mem/Pass Visits 3964| 3914| 3210| 3216 3096| 3051 3410| 3025| 3240 3400| 3628 3648 40802
DHS Aquatics O| 172| 447| 318 404| 344 247 318 429| 379| 472| 241 3971
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 420| 462 484 192 0 1558
Drop-In Visits| 16146| 8815| 3643 3008| 2392| 2794| 3730/ 3411 4899 5560| 6705| 12880 73983
User Fees| 100,273|70,785 35,787(31,700(28,920(22,819 44,971{34,219(39,770|48,250(52,989 77,116| $587,599




User Attendance Breakdown

Summary June 2024 July 1, 2023 thru June 30, 2024
Drop-Ins | Passes Total % Drop-Ins | Passes Total %

Senior 835 2,795 3,630 22% 5,310 31,764 37,074 32%
Adult 3,770 405 4,175 25% 22,495 4,249 26,744 23%
Youth 7,611 35 7,646 46% 42,195 493 42,688 37%
Complimentary 221 - 221 1% 818 - 818 1%
Family 233 72 305 2% 1,259 647 1,906 2%
Disabled 53 192 245 1% 428 2,064 2,492 2%
Therapy 78 - 78 0% 994 - 994 1%
Other 79 149 228 1% 484 1,585 2,069 2%

12,880 3,648 16,528 100% 73,983 40,802 114,785 100%




East Fork Swim Pool District
Lifeguard Activity Report, Fiscal Year: '22-'23

July | Aug|Sept| Oct | Nov | Dec| Jan | Feb [Mar April| May June| Total
Swim Rescues 4 0 1 2 1 2 0 0 3 4 1 9 27
Minor First Aid 29| 16 8 5 o 1 1| 5| 3 9 8| 24| 109
Major First Aid of 0 0 o0 0 0 0 il o0 0 0 0 1
Resuscitations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Near Drownings 0, O 0 0 0] 0 0o o o 0 of o 0
Drownings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Maijor First Aid Description:
Backboard 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
911 Calls of o of o 0 of 0 1/ o 0 0f 0 1
Ambulance Transport of o of o0 0 oOf o 1 o 0 of o0 1
Oxygen uses 1 2 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 7
East Fork Swim Pool District
Lifeguard Activity Report, Fiscal Year: '23-'24

July | Aug|Sept| Oct | Nov | Dec| Jan | Feb | Mar April| May June | Total
Swim Rescues 3 1 2 2 0 0 1 0 2 7 1] 11 30
Minor First Aid 44( 18 5/ 7 0O 8 1| 8 7 5 8| 38| 149
Major First Aid of o of o 0 Of 0 o o 0 of 0O 0
Resuscitations of o of o0 0 0 0 0o o 0 0 0 0
Near Drownings ol o of o 0 0l 0 of o 0 of o 0
Drownings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] 0 0 0 0 0
Maijor First Aid Description:
Backboard of o 0f o 0f 0 o0 o o 0 0f O 0
911 Calls of o of o 0 00 o o o 0 of o 0
Ambulance Transport of o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oxygen uses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0f 0 1 0 0 1




Shannon Harris

From: Shannon Harris

Sent: Tuesday, July 9, 2024 3:39 PM

To: Titian Anning

Subject: RE: Community Concerns

Attachments: Policy Facility Use Fee 01142020.pdf; 2023 Front Counter Handout.docx; County, School

& Senior Population.xlsx

Hello again,
Please see my responses below along with some attached documentation. | hope this helps explain the reasons behind
all of what we do.

Please reach out with any further questions you (or the community) may have.
Respectfully,

Shannon L. Hatris CPRE, CPO

Director | Carson Valley Swim Center

President | Nevada Recreation & Patks Society

Alumna | University of Nevada, Reno

775-392-4062 (O)

LinkedIn & CVSC Website

From: Titian Anning <titian.anning@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, July 8, 2024 2:43 PM

To: Shannon Harris <director@cvswim.com>
Subject: Community Concerns

Caution: External (titian.anning@yahoo.com)

First-Time Sender Details

Report This Email FAQ GoDaddy Advanced Email Security, Powered by INKY

Dear Shannon,

After many talks with other families at the pool center, I've decided to put our complaints in writing.
Thank you for letting me know the concerns. I can not address what I am not aware of.

We as locals and taxpayers feel that the prices are horrendously high and the pricing is difficult to understand.
We take every decision we make serious and with a lot of input and consideration. We discuss fees every 1-2
years in January and February comparing the cost, amenities and hours of operation to other Northern Nv

Jacilities. We also look at inflation of goods and delivery and then offset the costs with the complete
1




understanding that we are a tax district. (www.cvswim.com Board Minutes). We have gone up to 12 years with
no changes to admission and another 7yrs after that with no changes. It wasn 't until 2023 that we increased our
entrance fees by $1. We also allow disabled veterans to swim Jor free and have discounts for active military
personnel. To give you some additional perspective our operating budget alone is currently $3.1M and that is
not including the Capital Budget which can be $1-3M above that

The hours during summer weekends are ridiculous 11am - 4pm only giving families a five hour window to swim/play.

This has come up in the past and the times for the weekends during the summer this year was increased to
4:00pm from 3:00pm. I understand it is still a concern so it will be reevaluated again for next summer. We also
have a high demand for after-hours parties and reserve 4-6pm for those to occur on Saturdays.

The weekends are the busiest with families wanting to swim and get out of the heat. Lane swimmers should have a set time in the
mornings to lap swim allowing the lane ropes to be pulled in for more room for families/kids to play.

Yes, I agree that the weekends are busy and the staff have been instructed to move the lanes as needed. If we
have more public swim and less demand Jor lap swimming then they can take an additional lane or two out. |
will remind the supervisors of that in our meeting tomorrow but keep in mind that I have been instructed by the
Board to always allow for lap swimming during all open hours but more room can be added if the demand calls
for it. :

With the amount of people moving into the area the pool is only going to get busier and needs to accommodate them without them
swimming on top of each also making this a safety risk.

Please see attached document. We track population annually and discuss it every January with the budget and
Jfees. Population has barely grown in Douglas over the past 3 years and school enrollment has declined. We
understand some decrease is due to homeschooling. Were we are also seeing a larger increase in seniors.

People are coming from Reno and Carson to use this pool.

We are a public facility under NRS 318 and will always remain open to the public no matter where they live. We
do however charge more for memberships and lessons if they are non-residents outside of Gardnerville,
Minden, Topaz and Genoa. This also offsets being a tax district charging tax payers less.

With the block of land next door owned by the the Carson Valley Swim Center perhaps it's time to build another pool to accommodate
all the people wanting to use the pool facility.

We have started the process of flood mapping and working with the County and FEMA. It is a 5-10 project that
will consist of three phases. Phase 1: Additional Parking Phase 2: Indoor multi-use Jacility Phase 3. Lazy
River. This is all subject to change based on public input, cost, staffing etc. as we move through the planning
process.

I have been told that teenagers are now allowed to use the infant pool which is not acceptable.

I am going to assume you are talking about the Therapy Pool which is set Jor 93 degrees for therapeutic
purposes. That pool was originally designed and built to serve seniors, adults and persons with disabilities. It is
truly for rehabilitation, stretching etc. After many board meetings, discussions and research it was determined,
a few years ago, that children under the age of 6yrs with little body fat are intolerant to colder temperatures.
All of our other pool are cooler Jor training and recreational purposes. Because of the intolerance to cold, we
allow children under the age of 7yrs only after 12pm, when physical therapy is complete, in that pool with an
adult in the water for therapeutic and health reasons. We also allow any age with a disability and also teens
over the age of 18yrs because they are considered adults. T, here is no “playing” in that pool unless we have a
special event during or afier hours.

The price of private lessons is over the top. The pool should be promoting leam to swim lessons but with $50 for 2 children for 1/2 hour
it is far too expensive.

We compared “private” swim lessons to other facilities and believe that we are charging a fair price. We are
higher than some facilities and lower than others. If it is too much for some families, we also offer drop-in
lessons and session lessons as other alternatives. Private lessons have more individualized attention and the
instructor is at the mercy of the family on when they can come in. There is a monetary value placed on that.




The children’s pool outside needs shade over the end closest to the pool deck chairs giving some sun protection. More sun protection is
also really needed around the outside pool deck.

I'will look into more shade structures as I was the one who added the large one on the west side of the deck
several years ago. Please keep in mind that you are welcome to bring in umbrellas and shade structures if you
personally need more shade and place them in the grass area.

The price for non swimmers needs to change as grandparents/parents feel it unfair if they are not swimming. An armband for swimmers
would solve this issue.

Please see attached document. It is a “facility use” fee not a “swim Jee” and it has kept people who do not
belong out of the facility and stops them from loitering creating a safer environment. Wristbands would not
necessarily work because people will take them off if they wanted to swim and we wouldn’t be able to monitor
them... believe it or not, people almost daily are trying to deceive us. If we put them on the swimmers for the
day, we would be putting on hundreds if not a thousand some days and would have to replace them as they fall
off. It would also be a financial burden as well.

There needs to be two people working the front counter during busy times as people wanting to sign up for memberships/swim lessons
or order food hold up the line for people just wanting to swim,

Can you please be more specific? In the spring, when we get busier, we do put two cashiers on the front line on
the weekends as well as during the busy times 7 days a week in the summer. In the summer, we also have the
snack bar open with a 3 cashier. We also do not allow patrons to book a party after 11am on weekends
because it does hold up the line. We have one line in the summer for “memberships” and one for “drop-in”’ for
the very reason you mentioned and I will make sure the cashiers are using them correctly by working with their
supervisor. Did you catch us on a day where maybe someone called in sick or was on break?

These issues have come from a number of community members.
I hope you share this information with them.

Thank you for your time.

Thank you!

Titian Anning and Fiona Anning

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone




Review of Policy: All Patrons Pay to be on Deck

One of our less popular policies, unfortunately, is that everyone must pay to be on the
deck. Some parents argue that they are watching their children which makes the center
safer and therefore they should not have to pay. The following are some of the reasons
we adopted this policy approximately 12 years ago.

When the center first opened the community was much smaller and attendance at the
Carson Valley Swim Center was lower. Originally, we only charged those who swam.
As time went by and the community grew this led to an increasing number and variety of
problems. They included:

Parents bringing the entire family in (with a packed ice chest) but on ly
paying for a few swimmers. Then the non-paying members would just get in
fora minute.” Upon leaving their garbage would remain often all over the
center.

Teenagers would come in and mill around the deck causing a wide variety of
problems.

Adults not associated with anyone would come in and watch. (watch what?)

Our 'no shoes allowed on the pool deck' policy (which was well signed)
proved to be unenforceable, particularly with the non-swimmers. Note: we
can enforce rules with youth —adults are the ones who typically disregard this

policy.

Due to problems such as the above the Board of Trustees adopted a policy, we consider to
be VERY CLEAR AND ENFORCEABLE. Other reasons for the current policy include:

With any other policy —where do we draw the line? One parent or two? A
grandparent, aunts, uncles. How about other members of the family? Are they
members of the family? Boyfriends/girlfriends?

Isitlegal to discriminate among all the possible non-paying friends. relatives
and strangers?

Is the fee reasonable? Since a parent can bring in one child 6 or younger for free
and up to 2 others that age for $1.00 the extra charge.

Do we provide a free option for those with children over age 6? Yes the
mezzanine viewing area.




Is this policy unusual? No -almost all public pools follow this policy including
all in our area. Note: when the pool was designed the architect assumed this
would be the policy —hence the lobby bathrooms for the non-paying spectators
and the mezzanine for non-paying viewing.

Do non-swimmers affect operating costs or benefit from what is provided?
Absolutely. Costs include: landscape maintenance including irrigation, garbage,
heating, lighting, air conditioning, the building (protection from the environment),
tables and benches. Maintenance costs are certainly affected —dirt on the deck,
Jjanitorial etc.

Safety: Parents feel their presence makes the center safer. We feel that for those
who make it safer there are an equal number that offset this gain. Why? Many do
not watch their children —they read. work, visit with friends and far too often talk
with and distract our guards. Itcan be very hard for our young guards to stop a
determined adult from talking to them. Many times, we have had to intervene and
ask the adults — including professional teachers or recreation leaders —to let our
guards do theirjob.




FEE INCREASE EFFECTIVE MAY 15t, 2023

On December 15t 2022 the East Fork Swimming Pool District Board of Trustees voted to raise user fees
after seven years. Prior to seven years ago, it was twelve years since the fees had been raised. During the last
Seéven years, our operating costs such as labor and maintenance have increased and we are constantly faced
with pool repairs and equipment replacement. Our pool is the most extensive swim facility in Northern
Nevada, while our user fees remain significantly below those of any comparable facility. The fees will not be
reviewed again until 2024.

The Swim Center is thirty-four (34) years old. We will continue to evaluate these systems to repair or
replace those most likely to fail so that we can limit pool closure time to planned projects rather than
unplanned systems failure. We are fortunate to have funds to pay for much of the known facility issues, but
we potentially have more maintenance projects ahead of us than we have money to fund. Therefore, it is
critical that we set aside funds each year for future projects.

The Carson Valley Swim Center has been a valued community asset and source of pride for over thirty years.
We intend to preserve this asset for the community for the future.

POOL FACTS

East Fork Swimming Pool District = All of Douglas County excluding Stateline.
Opened in 1989.
5 Member Elected Board of Trustees.
Construction funded by bonds which were retired in November, 2006.
Economics

© Revenue = Ad Valorem Taxes & User Fees.
7 Years Since Fees Have Been Raised.
'22-23 Budget = $2.6M.
80-90 summer employee count, 40-50 winter employee count.
Capital Improvement/Repair Projects $3.2M+ (2022-2027).
In 2019, the Board of Trustees approved a 30-35% cost recovery goal (user fees relative to
operating costs). 33% was originally set by the elected Board of Trustees in 1987.
® Current Property Tax Rate = 13 cents per $100 assessed valuation (EFSPD)

© In 2012, Board of Trustee’s voted to contribute 3.45 cents of EFSPD’s Tax Rate to Douglas
County.

O 0 O 0 0

*In the tables below you will see our current fees (titled CVSC) and the approved fees




Carson Valley Swim Center
New Fees Effective May 2023

urrent Rate |New Rate

Drop Ins Rate Name Amount Amount

Adult Drop-In Adult Drop-In $5.00 $6.00

Senior/Disabled Senior/Disabled $3.00| $4.00

Youth Drop-In Youth Drop-In $3.00| $4.00

Friday Night Special 5:30p-7:30p Friday Night Special 5:30p-7:30p $2.00 $2.00

Family Day Rate Family Day Rate $15.00 | $18.00
Adult Water Exercise Adult Water Exercise $6.00| $7.00

Senior Water Exercise Senior Water Exercise $5.00| $6.00

Public Shower Public Shower 200 $2.00

(,u'rrenTR'Safe' N_ew"RaFJe

Membership Name Rate Name Amount Amount

15 Swim Adult (18-59) Adult (Non Res) $74.00 | $84.00
15 Swim Adult (18-59) Adult (Resident) $60.00 | $72.00
15 Swim Disabled Disabled (Non Resident) $43.00 | $56.00
15 Swim Disabled Disabled (Resident) $40.00 | $48.00
15 Swim Senior (60+) Senior (Non Resident) $43.00 | $56.00
15 Swim Senior (60+) Senior (Resident) $40.00 | $48.00
15 Swim Youth (7-17) Youth (Non Resident) $43.00 | $56.00
15 Swim Youth (7-17) Youth (Resident) $40.00 | $48.00
30 Day Adult (18-59) Adult (Non Resident) $60.00 | $72.00
30 Day Adult (18-59) Adult (Resident) $50.00 | $60.00
30 Day Disabled 30 Day Disabled $35.00 | $42.00
30 Day Family Family (Resident) $114.00 | $137.00
30 Day Family Family (non-res) $136.00 | $172.00
30 Day Senior (60+) 30 Day Senior (non-res) $40.00 | $52.00
30 Day Senior (60+) 30 Day Senior (Resident) $35.00| $42.00
30 Day Youth (7-17) 30 Day Youth (Resident) $35.00 | $42.00
90 Day Adult (18-59) 90 Day Adult $149.00 | $179.00
90 Day Adult (18-59) 90 Day Adult Resident $125.00 | $150.00
90 Day Disabled 90 Day Disabled Resident $80.00 | $96.00
90 Day Family Family (Resident) $284.00 | $342.00
90 Day Senior (60+) 90 Day Senior (non-res) $100.00 | $130.00
90 Day Senior (60+) 90 Day Senior Resident $80.00 $96.00
90 Day Youth (7-17) 90 Day Youth Resident $80.00 | $96.00




Current Rate |New Rate |
Membership Name Rate Name Amount Amount
Annual Active Military Annual Active Military $195.00 | $0.00
Annual Adult Adult (Non Resident) $473.00 | $473.00
Annual Adult Adult (Resident) $390.00 | $390.00
Annual Disabled Disabled (Non Resident) $237.00 | $237.00
Annual Disabled Disabled (Resident) $195.00 | $195.00
Annual Disabled Veteran Thank You 4 Your Service $0.00 | $0.00
Annual Family Family (Resident) $750.00 | $750.00
Annual Senior (60-74) Senior (Non Resident) $237.00 | $237.00
Annual Senior (60-74) Senior (Resident) $195.00 | $195.00
Annual Senior (75+) Senior $145.00 | $145.00
Active Board Pass Active Board Pass $0.00 $0.00
Employee Family Pass Employee Family Pass S0.00 $0.00
15 Adult Exercise 15 Adult Exercise $71.00 | $84.00
15 Senior Exercise (60+) *** Senior Exercise (Non Res) $48.00 | $66.00
15 Senior Exercise (60+) Senior Exercise(Resident) $42.00 | $57.00
30 Day Adult Exercise 30 Day Adult Exercise $60.00 | $80.00
30 Day Senior Exercise (60+) 30 Day Senior Exercise $40.00 | $60.00
90 Day Adult Exercise 90 Day Adult Exercise $155.00 | $186.00
90 Day Senior Exercise (60+) 90 Day Senoir Exercise $90.00 | $110.00
Annual Adult Exercise Annual Adult Exercise $480.00 | $480.00
Annual Senior Exercise (60-74) Annual Senior Exercise $319.00 | $319.00
Annual Senior Exercise (75+) Annual Senior Exercise (7 $269.00 | $269.00
***2 step fee increase 2023/24

Current Rate  |New Rate |
Lessons Rate Name Amount Amount
Drop-In Lessons (Resident) Drop-In Lessons $7.00 $9.00
Drop-In Lessons (Non-Resident) Drop-In Lessons (Non-Resident) $7.00| $10.00
Session Lessons Session Lessons $55.00 | $65.00
Non-Res Session Lessons Non-Res Session Lessons $65.00 | $78.00
1 x 1 Private 1x1 Private $28.00 | $34.00
1 x4 Private 1x4 Private $84.00 | $100.00
2 x 1 Private 2x1 Private $42.00 | $50.00
2 x 4 Private 2x4 Private $126.00 | $150.00

Current Rate |New Rate |
Party Rentals Rate Name Amount Amount
Mezzanine, BBQ Area Rental/hr Mezzanine, BBQ Area Rental $75.00 | $100.00
Patio Rental/hr Patio Rental/hr $50.00 | $75.00
Wibit/hr Wibit/hr $75.00 | $75.00
After Hours Party Indoor under 100 After Hours Party Indoor $215.00 | $250.00
After Hours Party Indoor over 100 After Hours Party Indoor $250.00 | $285.00
After Hours Party Indoor/Outdoor After Hours Party Indoor/Outdoor $265.00 | $300.00
After Hours Party Indoor/Outdoor After Hours Party Indoor/OQutdoor $335.00 | $370.00




Current Rate |New Rate
Lane Rentals (Per Hr) Rate Name Amount Amount
Group Lane Rental Group Lane Rental Per Hour $5.00 | $5.00
Water Rental (Dive Well/Slide Pool) Water Rental Per Hour $15.00 | $20.00
Masters Master Per Hour $2.50 | $5.00
Scuba Rental Scuba Rental Per Hour $18.00 | $20.00
Current Rate  |New Rate |
Locker Rentals Rate Name Amount Amount
Monthly Locker Rentals Monthly Locker Rentals $15.00 | $15.00
Daily Small Locker Rental Daily Small Locker Rental $1.00 | $2.00
Daily Large Locker Rental Daily Large Locker Rental $2.00 | $3.00
Current Rate  |New Rate
Swim Team Rate Name Amount Amount
DDST Rental (Monthly) Swim Team Rental $1,100.00 | $1,200.00
DHS Annual Fee DHS (Aquatics/Swim/Dive Team) $3,250.00| $3,750.00
Current Rate | New Rate
Group Visits Rate Name Amount Amount
Group Visits w/Lessons (Resident) Group Visits w/Lessons (Resident) $6.00 | $9.00
Group Visits w/Lessons (Non-Res) Group Visits w/Lessons (Non-Res) $7.00 | $10.00
Group Visits swim only (Resident) Group Visits swim only (Resident) $3.00 $4.00
Group Visits swim only (Non-Res) Group Visits swim only (Non-Res) $5.00 | $6.00
Current Rate |New Rate
American Red Cross Rate Name Amount Amount
ARC Certification Course (Res) ** ARC Certification Course (Res) $150.00( $200.00
ARC Certification Course (NR) ** ARC Certification Course (NR) $175.00( $225.00
ARC Re-Cert (Resident) ** ARC Re-Cert (Resident) $75.00| $100.00
ARC Re-Cert (Non-Res) ** ARC Re-Cert (Non-Res) $88.00| $125.00
ARC CPR/AED (Resident) ** ARC CPR/AED (Resident) $90.00] $90.00
ARC CPR/AED (Non-Res) ** ARC CPR/AED (Non-Res) $115.00| $115.00

**Fees for Certification Classes have been waived for past 3 yrs for those who want to work @ CVSC




Douglas County Population & School Enrollment Trends

data obtained from "Populati e for Nevada's Counties 2015 to 2023" from The Nevada State Demographer's Office.

54,800 7,300
52,800
6,800
50,800 €
@
g 6,300 g
® e
& I
S 48,800 s
S a5 =
z )
c o
3 -
3 5800 T
o
<
46,800 @
5,300
44,800
42,800 4,800
B > & oo 3 SO - S R R Y . .
S R R S R L L T - T
===Population = 5chool Enroliment
Population data obtained from "Population Projections for Nevada's Counties 2015 to 2023" from The Nevada State Demographer’s Office.
School enroliment data provided by the Douglas County School District.
Douglas County Population & Senior Population
54,800 20,000
18,000
52,800
16,000
14,000
50,800
13
8 12,000
=
&
3
&
4 48,800 10,000
>
Z
c
2
3 8,000
46,800
6,000
4,000
44,800
2,000
42,800 §
el > $ o a o o 3 ] J ] o A N 2 &
4 \d ¥ \d i
& & F g & \.é? L G A A A A
——Paopulation —===Senior Population




